STATE OF NEW YORK
DEPARTMENT OF TAXATION AND FINANCE
Office of Budget & Management Analysis
Bureau of Fiscal Services
Building 9, Room 234
W.A. Harriman Campus
Albany, NY 12227
Patricia Mitchell, Chief Financial Officer
Eric Mostert, Assistant Director, Budget & Accounting Services
Catherine Golden, Assistant Director, Procurement Services

October 6, 2009

Dear Bidder,
Attached are the following:
•

Questions and answers for RFP 09-01 for Controlled Disbursement and Direct Deposit Services;

•

Amendment to Sections II Performance Standards, Liquidated Damages and Reimbursements;

•

Amendment to Section III, Administrative Conditions and Proposal Response Requirements;

•

Amendments to Section VI, Functional Requirements; and

•

Amendment to Section X, Financial Requirements.

In addition, we would like to clarify the following: in all instances where “check” was used, it should be replaced
with “drafts”.

All other requirements and conditions of the RFP remain as indicated.

NYS Department of Taxation and Finance
Request for Proposal (RFP) #09‐01
PIT Refund Controlled Disbursement and Direct Deposit Services
Question and Answer Document

#
1

RFP Section
VI. A. 2.1

RFP
Page #
36

2

VI. A 3.3

37

3

VI. C.1.1

39

Question
The Contractor must accept separate issuance files ‐
transmitted for each account (Exhibit B‐1 – Draft
Issuance File Layout). The Contractor must also accept
check issuance text files for multiple accounts.
Question: DTF discusses separate issue files‐
some in DTF format and some in text files. Please
confirm if any accounts could potentially be sent in
BOTH asked formats at any time?
The Contractor must enable the Department to cancel
previously issued payments. Such cancellations must
remain in effect until the Department authorizes their
removal. The contractor must enable the Department
to remove a previously placed cancel, preferably
online. The Contractor must notify the Department
that the payment has been cancelled or the cancel
has been rejected.
Question: Please provide clarification around
'Cancels'. Under "Required Reporting" there is
mention of notification and/or reporting to the
Department that the cancel payment order has been
placed. We are unclear if DTF is discussing stop
payments or truly means cancel/void issues.
The Contractor must maintain original drafts for at
least one year from the paid date.
Question: In light of Check 21 and the strong
movement within the Industry to image cash
letters/transmissions fewer
original items
are being returned. With our ability to provide
image transmissions, CD‐ROM's and image access to
our archive via the Internet‐ do these means of

Answer
The Department may issue draft issuance files
throughout a given day from the main
concentration account, any of the subaccounts as
well as, the main exchange account and its sub
accounts.
Additionally, see Amendment.
The Department considers the “cancel payment
processes” as stated in Section VI.A.3.3 to include
stops, voids, deletes as well as cancels.

In those instances where paper drafts, or IRDs, are
returned to the Contractor the documents must be
maintained for at least one year from the paid
date.
Additionally, see Amendment.
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#

RFP Section

RFP
Page #

4

VI.C.1.2

39

5

VI. D.2.1

40

6

VI. D.6.1

42

7

Preface

4

Question

Answer

access to images meet the requirements asked by
the DTF?
The Contractor must provide requested original drafts See Amendment.
within one business day (of the agreed upon request
cut‐off time).
Question: Will an Image Replacement
Document (IRD) satisfy this request?
Provide the proposed back‐up time frames to transmit No, only PIT Refund credits will be disbursed from
to the ACH network if, for any reason, the initial
the account.
transmission is not initiated or the transmission fails.
Also provide the control structure for the PIT
Controlled Disbursement account (i.e., how transfers
into/out of the account will be identified and
segregated from other ACH Credit transactions).
Question: Will there be any other ACH
originated transactions, besides the PIT refund
credits, disbursed from this account?
The Contractor must provide on a monthly basis, to
No, the transit and routing number must be
the Department, transit and routing number
provided to us in a specified format (to be
verification information in an agreed upon electronic
provided during development).
file format. The Contractor must also provide the
Department, on an annual basis, the NACHA Rules,
with periodic updates, as appropriate.
Question: Would the State be willing to access
this information directly from the Federal Reserve
website
http://www.fededirectory.frb.org/.? Clients have
the ability to download the payment directories
from this site directly.
The RFP references “…filing the “Offerer Affirmation
See RFP Amendment posted September 22, 2009.
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#
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RFP
Page #

8

Section III. II.A

19

9

Section III. II.A
Section III.II.D.2

19
23

10

Section III. II.A

20

11

Section III. II.B
and II.D

20

Question
and Understanding of, and Compliance with,
Procurement
Lobbying Guidelines” (Appendix B‐7, see also Section
III C6).” Please clarify if the reference should be to
Appendix B‐7
or to B‐6, which lists the form titled as referenced
above.
Clarify the number of volumes to be provided by a
bidder– is it four as listed in the numbered items
following “Bidders
must submit:” If not, where should the forms listed in
bullet 1 be included?
Confirm that the items listed in Section III.II.A #4
(page 19) are to be included in the technical response
per Section III.II
D.2 (page 23) and not in a separate binder.
Please confirm what version of MS Word and MS
Excel is preferred for the additional CDs requested on
# 5.
The RFP states:
p.20: “The requirements in Sections IV, VI, VII, VIII, IX,
X, and XI are mandatory and responses to each must
be included
within the Technical and Financial proposals. The
responses to these requirements will be considered
in the evaluation
and award process and will be implemented by the
Department. Additionally, bidders may identify
alternative language
or terms, as permitted by RFP language to Section II –

Answer

See Amendment.

See Amendment.

97 to the most current version. The preferred
version is 2007.
See Amendment.
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#

12

RFP Section

RFP
Page #

Question
Performance Standards, Liquidated Damages and
Reimbursements
and Section XI – Invariable Contract Conditions and
Negotiable Topics.”
and
p.23: “3. Section 3 – Responses to Requirements –
Sections III – IX
This section must contain responses to the individual
requirements contained in Sections III – IX.”
Question:
The first set of instructions on page 20 seems to
indicate that responses to sections III (three) and V
(five) are not
necessary to include in Bidder’s Technical Proposal
response.
However, the second set of instructions, on page 23,
would seem to indicate that Bidders are to respond
to sections III
(three) through IX (nine), inclusive of section V (five).
In light of these instructions, could the Department
please clarify if a response to Section III –
Administrative Conditions
and Proposal Response Requirements and Section V –
Evaluation Process is required? If a response to these
sections is
required, shall Sections III and V be included in the
Technical Proposal?
What institution is the current contractor for this
activity? How long has that contractor been in place?

Answer

The current contractor for this service is JP Morgan
Chase. The contract has been in effect since
December 2003.
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#

RFP Section

13

RFP
Page #

Question

Is a recent Account Analysis for your existing
contractor available?

14

Section 1, B. –
Program
Overview

Is there any campaign planned to promote greater
acceptance of ACH refund activity and materially
change the mix?

15

Section 1, B. –
Program
Overview

How many accounts are maintained for ACH and
paper disbursement activities?

16

Section 1, B. –
Program
Overview
Section 1, B. –
Program
Overview

What is a ‘Cancel Payment Request’?

17

18

19

Section II, D. –
Liquidated
Damages
Structure

Answer

No account analysis is available. This contract has
a fully loaded transaction rate and pays per
transaction.
There is no campaign planned at this time, though
it is a continued goal of the Department to
increase direct deposits.

The bidder must establish a joint custody main
concentration account as well as three joint
custody zero balance sub‐accounts (as described in
Section VI, A.1.1) as well as a main concentration
exchange account and three associated sub‐
accounts.
(as described in Section VI, A.1.3)
A cancel payment request includes stops, voids,
deletes as well as cancels.

What is a ‘Exchange Account’ transaction?

A credit to the main concentration exchange
account is performed for valid forgery claims.

Is there interest in expanding the RFP to include
check issuance and outsourcing of the mailing
activities?

No.

What has been the amount of liquidated damages
the Department has collected in each of the past
three years?

There have been no liquidated damages imposed
in the past three years.
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#
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RFP
Page #

Question

Answer

20

Section VI,
A.2.1 – Draft
Issuance Files

Please provide more information on ‘contractor must
accept check issuance text files for multiple
accounts’.

See Amendment.

21

Section VI,
A.4.1 ‐ Forgery
Affidavit
Processing

Do you expect funds to be processed to you account
before they are received from the bank of first
deposit?

The account is funded as checks are presented.

22

Section VI,
A.4.1 ‐ Forgery
Affidavit
Processing

What has been the volume of forgery activity over
the past three years?

The volume of forgery activities over the past
three years:
YTD 2009‐ 2,717
YTD 2008‐ 2,514
YTD 2007‐ 1,923

23

Section VI, B.1.1
– Images of Paid
Drafts

How many images are accessed via the bank
reporting system during the average month?

During an average month, 320 images are accessed
via the bank reporting system.

24

Section VI,
C.1.0 –
Maintenance,
access and
destruction of
Original Drafts

Is the State willing to shorten the time for holding
original drafts to three months?

No. In addition, see clarification.

25

Section VI, D.2.0
– Direct Deposit

Does the State receive an OICF file for each batch of

Yes. In addition, see Amendment.
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#

RFP Section

RFP
Page #

Question

Answer

Initiation

items released to the bank?

26

Section VI, D.4.0
– ACH Credit
Reversal

What has been the frequency of ACH reversals over
each of the past three years?

Year to date the current frequency for ACH
reversals is 393. For 2008 there were 640
reversals. 2007 had approximately 200 reversals.

27

Section VI, D.4.0
– ACH Credit
Reversal

What has been the frequency of bulk ACH cancels
and reversals over each of the past three years?

Bulk cancels occur once per year. In the past three
years there has only been one reversal.

28

Section VI, D.5.0
– ACH
Exceptions

What has been the frequency of NOC and returned
item activity over each of the past three years?

See Attachment 2 to this document.

29

Section VI, D.5.0
– ACH
Exceptions

Is the State willing to accept a transmission of NOC
and returns activity, in addition to on‐line reporting?

Yes.

30

Section X –
Financial
Requirements

Is the State willing to accept a bid based on a ‘fee
payment only basis?

No.

31

Section X‐
Financial
Requirements

Is the State willing to accept additional line items on
the Direct Fees Financial Table?

No.

32

Section IV,
Qualifying

The RFP states the primary contractor must be a state
or federally chartered commercial bank with at least

No.

27
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#

RFP Section

RFP
Page #

Requirements,
item 1.1.

33

34

35

Section III.II.A.5

20

36

Section III.II.D

22

Question
one branch in New York State (see Section VII –
Program Development and Support) and must
possess the technical qualifications to develop,
implement and operate the program defined herein.
Will the State consider amending the RFP to
encourage qualified bidders who are not a qualified
financial institution but have a qualified financial
institution as a subcontractor, providing all required
banking and financial services to bid?
Subsequently if the answer is yes, will the State
remove the requirement for one branch in the state
provided the Contractor provides adequate banking
access to ATMs, Bank and Credit Union branches?
Will the State also extend the Q&A period until
September 21 to allow additional questions to be
asked from newly qualified potential bidders?
To facilitate requests for information under the
Freedom of Information Law (FOIL), contractors are
required to provide two (2) copies, on CDs, of its
complete proposal in a non‐.pdf format (e.g., MS
Word, MS Excel, etc.).
Question: Certain requested appendices (such as our
annual reports) are only available in pdf format – is
that acceptable for appendices as long as the main
response document is provided in MS Word and MS
Excel?
Section 3 – Responses to Requirements – Sections III –
IX. This section must contain responses to the
individual requirements contained in Sections III – IX.
Question: Does NYS DTF require responses to

Answer

Not applicable.

Not applicable.

This is acceptable.

Yes. Appendices B‐2 through B‐7 must be included
in your bid response.
See amendment to Section III.
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#

RFP Section

RFP
Page #

37

Section VI

35

38

Section VI

43

39

Exhibit B‐2

90

Question
Section III ‐ Administrative Conditions and Proposal
Response Requirements?
A.1.7 Account Reconciliation Processing (ARP)
Requirements. The Contractor must provide the
Department with electronic ARP reports in an agreed
upon format that will be compatible with MS Excel.
Question: Due to NYS DTF’s high volumes and the
volume limitations inherent in Excel, would CSV
reporting be an acceptable alternative to Excel
reporting?
E.
1.1 The Contractor must provide images (and
related indexing) of all drafts (front and back), post
endorsement. The indexing approach must ensure
that:
a.
There is one multi‐page (front and back) TIFF
image file for each separate draft.
b.
Each image file consists of fewer than one
billion bytes.
Each image must have a file name consisting of the
twelve digit tracking number (the DLN) and a three
character suffix (e.g., 123456789112.001 and
123456789112.002). The suffix is to represent the
sequential number of images (i.e., a front would be
the .001 and the back would be the .002
Question: Would NYS DTF be open to a different
naming convention?

Answer

Excel is the preferred method, however, CSV is
acceptable.

No, not at this time.

It's the date that the file was created.
PIT REFUND PAID DRAFT FILE
DATA

CHAR.

PIC.

FIELD
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#

RFP Section

RFP
Page #

Question
ITEM

Header ‐
Date

Answer

COMMENTS

9

9(8) MMDDCCYY

40

Section 1

Question: Is this the file date, the period end date,
or something else?
B. Program Overview: Lists an item called “exchange
account” with a volume of 363. What is the
underlying service being provided and/or TMA code?

41

Section 2 G.
Liquidated
Damages:

Please provide the total amount of liquidated
damages assessed under the existing contract, base
period and option years.

There have been no liquidated damages assessed
during this contract.

42

Section 2 G.
Liquidated
Damages:

1, A.5 System/Program Documentation: Can you
describe what documentation is required to be
delivered under this contract? Please describe any
desired manuals and guides and any requirements for
format, paper, online etc.

See RFP Section VII, E. a. and g.

Section 2 G.
Liquidated

3, A.1 Performance Monitoring: States contractor
must comply with audits and reviews. Please describe
the frequency and duration of the reviews conducted

There has been no specific audit on this program
under this contract. The Department conducted a
IT Security Risk Assessment at each of our

43

See the answer to Question #17; also, refer to
Section VI A.4.0 of the RFP.

No specified format.
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#

RFP Section

RFP
Page #

Question

Answer

Damages:

under the current contract.

contractors sites in 2007. The PIT Refund program
was part of the review.

44

Section 2 G.
Liquidated
Damages

4. A.2 Cancel Payment Orders: What is the current
agreed upon time for posting of cancel payment
orders?

Cancels are transmitted to the Department
between 8‐10 pm the same day as received; they
are posted overnight and are effective before
business begins the next day.

45

Section 2 G.
Liquidated
Damages:

4. A.4 Paid Draft Retention:
a. Is the current provider currently storing all paid
drafts?
b. Due to the use of imaging in the check clearing
process many times the original draft is not
available for storage. What arrangements have
been made with your current provider in cases
where draft is not available for storage?
c. In lieu of storing draft would image be
acceptable without penalty?

a. Paper is currently being stored.
b. In these instances where paper drafts, or IRDs,
are returned to the contractor the documents
must be maintained for at least one year from the
paid date.

c. Only in instances where paper is not returned to
the bank.
46

Section 2 G.
Liquidated
Damages:

4. A.5 Images of Paid Drafts: What is current agreed
upon timeframe for receipt of images of paid drafts?

Within 5 days of presentment.

47

Section 6

A. 1.8 States no costs can be assessed without prior
written consent. Please describe how written consent
is used in collecting fees from the monthly billing
cycle. Is written consent required before billing
statement charges are applied to ECR?

Charges agreed to in the contract; do not have to
have prior written consent before billing. New
charges and/ or fees must be approved through
the change control process outlined in Section VII.
Once approved, the Department will confirm via
email when the charges can be invoiced.
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#

48

RFP Section

RFP
Page #

Question

A. 3.2 “On us Drafts”:
a. What are the check cashing ID requirements
that your current provider uses today for the
program participants?
b. Are there any charges being incurred by
recipients who cash checks at bank branches? If
so what are they?
c. Are any fees charged to DTF by your current
banking provider for cashing checks? If so, what
is charge per item? What is monthly volume?
d. Is there any dollar limits as to the amount of the
check that will be cashed for non account
holders?
e. Are you open to the use of a card based
program, in lieu of checks, to eliminate check
cashing risk?
f. How many branches/locations are currently
available in State for check cashing?

Answer

a. “On us” checks cashing is not part of the current
contract.

b. Not applicable.

c. Not applicable.

d. No.

e. This is not part of this RFP.

f. Not applicable.
49

A. 4.0 Forgery Items
a. How are rejected forgery claims handled?
b. What specific information is required in the
weekly forgery status?
c. How is weekly forgery information delivered to
DTF?

a. Currently notification of Forgery claim rejection
is via letter fax to DTF Treasury.
b. Check number, check amount, status and
number of days in process
c. Currently forgery information is delivered via
letter but electronic submission is preferred (e.g.
e‐mail spreadsheet)
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#

50

RFP Section

RFP
Page #

Question

C. 1.1 Maintenance of Original Drafts
a. Please describe how the original drafts are
currently being maintained and retrieved? What
is current cut‐off time?
b. How does DTF handle situations where original
draft is not available?

51

D.1.1 Transmission:
a. Please describe the frequency of file
transmissions to bank and any seasonal changes
in frequency.
b. Will the bank be receiving a daily file for
controlled disbursement and ACH origination all
year round?

52

D. 2.0 Direct Deposit Initiation
a. Will the settlement account for ACH origination
be the controlled disbursement account?
b. In regard to release of ACH transactions. Please
describe the current process for release of ACH
transactions once the file is sent to the bank.
c. Would the following process be acceptable for
release of ACH transactions?
1) Encrypted transmission file is sent to bank
2) Designated Individual(s) with DTF receive
confidential username and password for
voice response system
3) DTF calls a voice response system: enters
username/password verifies/inputs

Answer

a. See response to question 46.
b. Images are used in instances without original
draft.

See Exhibit A for response to questions 51 a. and
51 b.

a. Yes

b. The release of ACH transactions is done via voice
response system.

c. DTF does not dictate the solution. Please refer to
RFP Section VI D.2.1 for requirement.
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#

RFP Section

RFP
Page #

Question

Answer

control totals and initiates release of file.
53

E. 1.1 Image Output
a. What is the current and desired frequency of
the image file delivery?
b. What is the approximate maximum number
of images in each file?
c. Please provide additional detail how the 12
digit tracking number is generated and used
to locate images by DTF

54

Section 7

C. Training:
a. Please describe how many people will
require training and which departments they
are located in.
b. Approximately how many individuals will
need access to the online web‐based banking
system?

55

Section 9

3.0 Collateral:
a. What are the average overnight balances (if
any) the State will maintain with these
deposit accounts?

a. Image files are currently received daily. This RFP
requires daily image file delivery, as well. See
Section II, 6.b.1 of this RFP, for the required
standard.
b. The attached daily refund issuances data is an
indicator of the approximate number of images
that will be sent each day (note that there is some
variation between the daily issuances and the paid
issuances). See Attachment 1.
c. The tracking number needed for the image index
file will be provided by DTF in the draft issues file
(the format of which will be modified slightly to
incorporate the 12 digit tracking number).
Currently, approximately thirty users are expected‐
two thirds from the Department and one third
from NYS OSC.

a. Although the accounts are anticipated to
be a zero balance daily based on the
controlled disbursement services, balances
are sometimes carried for adjustments or
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RFP
Page #

Question
b. Please provide historical overnight balances
(by month/day) and the volatility of the
balances to determine seasonality or cyclical
variations to the cash balances to the extent
possible
c. What is the estimated required collateral
level from activity?
d. Does the State require collateral for funds in
excess of FDIC insurance or for the full
balance?

56

57

Custodial Account Requirements
a. Is there a requirement to use Federal Reserve
Bank or a specific Third‐Party Provider?
b. Are there any other procedural
requirements?
c. Will you require any type of collateral
reporting?

Section 10

Earnings Credit Rate:
a. If the State elects to pay by compensating
balance, will it require these balances be
collateralized?

Answer
encoding errors. These balances are
minimal and normally cleared the next
business day.
b. Same as above
c. The initial anticipated collateral would be
zero.
d. The balances are expected to be 100%
collateralized.

a. All New York State funds on deposit with
financial institutions must be fully
collateralized by securities pledged at the
State’s fiscal agent.
b. Along with the Undertaking Agreement,
the provider must provide a designated
contact for collateral and settlement
instructions for the return of securities or
cash payments.
c. No, all collateral reporting is provided by
State’s custodian.

a. Yes, compensating balances must be
collateralized in accordance with sections
105 and 106 of State Finance Law.
b. Collateral requirements are the same.

b. If collateral is needed, will collateral
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#
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RFP
Page #

Question
requirements for compensating balances be
similar to the collateral requirements for
balances that result from the proposed activity?
Please outline any differences.
c. In the RFP it states that the Earnings Credit Rate
shall be determined by NYS OSC and confirmed
with the Contractor. How often during the life
of the contract is the ECR rate subject to
negotiations?
d. Do you pay the current provider by using
compensating balances or direct fee?

58

Payment for Services:
a. Appears to state that any hourly labor resulting
from change control or development can only
be billed annually? Not after services have been
completed. Please confirm.
b. Please provide the amount of development fees
and change control charges billed under the
existing contract?

59

FDIC fees – Financial Table
a. FDIC fees are largely determined by the FDIC
and subject to change over the base period of
the contract. In regard to years 1‐3, Is DTF
expecting the bank to provide a fixed fee
regardless of rate changes made by FDIC?

Answer

c. The ECR rate is not subject to negotiations.

d. The provider is currently being paid by
direct fee.

a. The contractor may invoice the Department
when the services are complete and has received
confirmation from the Department. The
contractor does not need to invoice annually.
b. Change controls are a minor component of this
contract. The total annual cost of the contract for
Fiscal Year 08/09 was $1,555,120. Please note, the
current contract includes services which are not
part of this RFP. The percentage attributable to
change controls was less than 2%.
a. The FDIC (Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation) fee is a pass‐through cost and no
additional fees should be added to it, however, the
Department will pay the full fee.

Page 16 of 32
10‐6‐09

NYS Department of Taxation and Finance
Request for Proposal (RFP) #09‐01
PIT Refund Controlled Disbursement and Direct Deposit Services
Question and Answer Document

#

RFP Section

RFP
Page #

Question
b. How will the State use the CPI‐U Computation
Methodology to determine the FDIC fees for
years 4, 5 and 6 of the contract?
c. If DTF allows for variance in FDIC fees based on
future policy changes by FDIC, Can you
describe how DTF will use a variable FDIC fee
in the price evaluation?
d. Would DTF consider dropping FDIC fees as
criteria in price evaluation?

Answer

b. The CPI‐U does not apply to FDIC fees.

c. A variable FDIC fee will not be used in the
evaluation.

d. FDIC fees are a pass through cost and are not
evaluated.
No.

60

Appendix D

1)Is it acceptable if the requirements of the Funds
Transfer Agreement (Appendix D) are met through
Citi's Electronic Banking product?

61

Other

Please describe how are you handling escheatment of
draft payments? Particularly out of state PIT refunds.

Three files are requested annually and processed
internally. The final file and outstanding items are
bulk cancelled.

62

Other

Would DTF benefit from a service to assist with this
function?

No.

63

Section II.F

8

If so please provide any volumes of number of
payments escheated and states involved.
The Program Performance Standards, Liquidated
Damages and Reimbursements, as set forth in this
section, represent the Department’s preferred

No.
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#
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standards and liquidated damages. In the event a
bidder provides specific alternative language to the
Program Performance Standards, Liquidated
Damages and Reimbursements, such alternative
language will be evaluated utilizing a scaled rating
whereby an affirmation of the Department’s standard
and/or liquidated damage receives the highest rating
and the maximum deviation (based on the minimum
allowed values stated below) from a standard or
liquidated damage receives the lowest rating. The
minimum values are as follows:
1) For Performance Standards: the Department will
not accept any alternative language to the
general controls standards. The Department will
allow alternate language for timeliness
standards on data and image output files of up
to one business day.
2) For Liquidated Damages, the Department will
not accept any alternative language that
reduces a liquidated damage by more than 25%
for specified dollar damages (e.g.:$1,000). The
Department will not accept percentage
reductions in the reimbursement column.
A bid which does not meet the minimum
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allowed values will be subject to
disqualification.
Would NYS DTF be willing to reconsider this
requirement and negotiate these terms upon
award?
64

Section II. 1.A.1
‐ 1.A.5

Pages
8‐9

Regarding Implementations: It is important that both
parties maintain agreed to schedules. Certainly, we
anticipate strong partnership if awarded this
contract. That said, there is a clause related to this
topic that we respectfully request be changed as the
language as written assumes all delays (potentially
even those caused by NYS DTF) create Contractor
liability and corresponding liquidated damage

Alternative language to any standards in Section II
may be proposed for DTF consideration, as
described in Section III.

Implementation Timeliness: Can an adjustment be
made to clarify that the root cause of any delay for
which the Contractor would be liable for penalties
must be the fault of bank?
65

Section VI. A
1.4, Bank
Accounts

Page
34,

The Contractor must provide daily statements for sub‐
accounts due on the next business day electronically.
Is access to online previous day account reporting
adequate to satisfy this requirement?

The Department does not specify a solution to
the requirement in Section VI A 1.4

66

Section VI. A
1.5, Account

Page
35,

Access to transaction history must be maintained and

See clarification.
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#
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Page #

Monitoring

Question

Answer

available for inquiry for a minimum of six months.
We are able to provide 60 days online access to
transaction history and up to 10 years access to
images. Your Client Service Advisor is available to
provide access to information beyond the 60 day
online access period. Is this acceptable to the State?

67

Section VI. A
2.1, Draft
Issuance Files

Page
36,

a. The Contractor must accept separate issuance
files ‐ transmitted for each account (Exhibit B‐1
‐ Draft Issuance File Layout). Would NYS DTF
consider using a bank standard issue file
layout instead of the layout provided in
Exhibit B‐1?

a. No.
b. See Amendment.
c. See RFP Section VI A.3.1 for an explanation of
unmatched items.

b. The Contractor must also accept check
issuance text files for multiple accounts. Please
clarify what is meant by “the Contractor must
also accept check issuance text files for
multiple accounts”. Is the NYS DTF planning
to send multiple accounts in a single file or
will each file be sent separately?
c. Under required response; Describe the
proposed method for processing the draft
issuance files ensuring that next day
presentments are not unmatched. Please
clarify that “not unmatched” is describing
Page 20 of 32
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positive pay suspect items and that DTF
requires the bank to perform next‐day
positive pay and not same‐day positive pay.

68

Section VI. Item
A.2.1

Page
36,

The Contractor must accept separate issuance files ‐
transmitted for each account (Exhibit B‐1 – Draft
Issuance File Layout). The Contractor must also accept
check issuance text files for multiple accounts.
Describe the proposed method for processing the
draft issuance files ensuring that next day
presentments are not unmatched. Include proposed
issuance file receipt cut‐off time and the proposed
retention period. It appears NYS DTF wants a Same
Day Positive Pay process, where the winning service
provider matches presentment information to issue
information prior to posting.

As described in the following example, next day
positive pay is required.

Day 1 – Issuance file is transmitted to bank prior to
the agreed upon cut‐off time.
Day 2 ‐ Presentment of any items from that file
are funded
Day 3 ‐ Treasury is notified of any unmatched
items from the presentment on Day 2.

Our positive pay service is a next day Positive Pay
service. Items with encoding errors are reviewed and
corrected by Account Reconcilement the day after
posting. Debit and Credit adjustment entries, as well
as Positive Pay return credits, for Controlled
Disbursement accounts are held over from posting to
the CDA and included the next morning in the client’s
Controlled Disbursement presentment information as
CDA Adjustment Debits/Credits. Is this acceptable to
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NYS DTF?
This pre‐post matching is again mentioned in the
following RFP item:
Page 36, Section A.2.3 Presented Draft Notification:
Functional Requirement: The Contractor must
provide NYS OSC, with the total dollar amounts of
matched presented drafts no later than 10:00 a.m.
each business day. The Contractor must not pay any
unmatched items without prior DTF approval. The
Department will accept estimates on an exception
basis. The Contractor should consult with OSC prior to
the 10:00 a.m. EST deadline to determine the funding
estimate. Required Response: Describe the proposed
process for determining the value of paid drafts (e.g.
in‐house processing of drafts, use of Federal Reserve
services, etc.); for completing the match of presented
drafts against the issuance file data; for ensuring that
an accurate presentment dollar total and item total is
provided to OSC; and for the time frame for
notification to OSC.

The requirement is stated at A.2.3. The
Department does not specify a solution.

Our Controlled Disbursement system consolidates
the Federal Reserve’s data with feeds it receives from
other internal sources including opening balances
from the Demand Deposit Account (DDA) System,
debit and credit ACH transactions from the ACH
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system and check‐related debit and credit
adjustments that were processed electronically. We
calculate the Disbursement Funding Requirement
using the following formula:
+ Disbursement Checks First presentment
+ Disbursement Checks Second presentment
+ ACH Disbursement Debits
‐ ACH Disbursement Credits
+ Adjustment Debits
‐ Adjustment Credits
‐ Opening Available Balance
With regard to unmatched items, these items are
included in Controlled Disbursement presentment. Is
this acceptable to NYS DTF?

69

Section VI.
A.3.2, On Us
Drafts

Page
37,

Can NYS DTF provide us with important data that
would better allow us to access the impact of
cashing “on us” checks with no fee? This
important/CRITICAL data would include: 1) the
number of “on us” checks in 2009 that were
presented for cashing in the branches of the current
provider (the incumbent will be able to retrieve that
data) and 2) number of those cashed checks where a
fee was charged.

See response to Question #48.

70

Section VI. A.
3.3, Payment

Page
37

Please confirm how NYS DTF defines a payment
Cancel. Are these Voided/Canceled checks or Stop
Payments? Stop Payments are placed on the bank

See response to Question #2.
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Cancels

71

Section VI.
C.1.0 ‐ 1.3,
Maintenance,
Access and
Destruction of
Original Drafts

Question

Answer

DDA (checking account) system and Voids/Cancels
are placed on the reconcilement system. The rules
around each are very different so we need to
understand your definition.
Page
39

C. 1.1 ‐ The Contractor must maintain original drafts
for at least one year from the paid date. Since the
advent of Check 21 legislation in 2004, banks no
longer are clearing original paper checks/drafts.
Current legislation, including Check 21, provides for
the legal legitimacy of images in lieu of physical
checks. As a significant portion of check clearing
between banks becomes image‐based in the coming
years, we recognize the importance of offering the
best in check imaging technology. We will maintain
images of all paid items for at least one year from
paid date, but will not maintain original checks/drafts.
Please confirm that NYS DTF understands and agrees
with this.

See Amendment.

72

C.1.2 ‐ The Contractor must provide requested
original drafts within one business day (of the agreed
upon request cut‐off time). In accordance with the
statement above, we will provide access to requested
images of checks/drafts within one business day.
Please confirm that NYS DTF is in agreement.

The requirement at Section VI, C.1.2 states the
expectation.

73

C. 1.3 ‐ The Contractor must provide for the

See Amendment regarding paper storage. The
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#
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Page #

Question
confidential destruction of original drafts after the
required one year retention period. The bank cannot
provide for confidential destruction of original
checks/drafts after a one year retention period as we
do not maintain originals. Please confirm that NYS
DTF is in agreement.

74

Section VI.
D.5.1, ACH
Exceptions

Page
41

Answer
requirements of C.1.3 remain.

a. Please explain “ACH Exceptions”.
b. Please provide an example.

a. An ACH exception is any discrepancy in a
transaction.
b. An example of an ACH exception is a direct
deposit posted to the wrong taxpayer bank
account.

75

Section VI.
E.1.0, Draft
Image Output
and Page 43.
E.1.2, Draft
Image Output

Page
42

E.1.0 Draft Image Output: The Contractor must
provide images (and related indexing) of all drafts
(front and back), post endorsement. The indexing
approach must ensure that: a. There is one multi‐
page (front and back) TIFF image file for each
separate draft. B. Each image file consists of fewer
than one billion bytes. Each image must have a file
name consisting of the twelve digit tracking number
(the DLN) and a three character suffix (e.g.,
123457689112.001 and 123456789112.002). The
suffix is to represent the sequential number of images
(i.e., a front would be .001 and the back would be
.002.
The Contractor must create a corresponding image
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RFP Section
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index file for all scanned images (see Exhibit C ‐ Image
Index Layout).
There are a number of fields in your items under file
layout in Exhibit C. We need clarification on this
information.
a. Will NYS DTS send the Bank a data file that
includes various items listed in Exhibit C (tax
type, processing year, return type, form type,
external ID, (taxpayer ID, etc.)?

a. The data identified in Exhibit C will be provided
on the draft issuance file. The final information
will be provided in the development phase.

b. Can the files be sent as a separate file from the
issuance file?

b. No.

c. If so, is the expectation that the winning bidder
will populate this information to the Index file
that is sent with the image to NYS DTF?
c. Not applicable.
76

Can you disclose the monthly volume of items that
the contractor will be sending via bulk image
transmission? Additionally,

See volumes of paid drafts in Exhibit A‐1‐a. Images
associated with these paid drafts would be the
volume of items in the Bulk image transmission.

a. Will this be images of checks or returned
items?

a. Paid drafts

b. Will this be a daily image file transmission?

b. Daily – (see RFP section II 6.B.1)
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Question
c. What is your existing image archive (For
example, Alchemy by IMR, Filenet)?

77

To accept the Bulk Image Transmission images NYS
DTF will need to perform the functions listed below.
Please confirm these are acceptable:

Answer
c. IBM Content Manager Version 8.4

The Department‘s requirements for Image Output
are located in the RFP Section VI, E.1.0.

a. Accept/receive zipped files and unzip multi‐
page TIFF wrapped images with both
Black/White (G4) front and back images. All the
images are compressed into one Zip archive file.

b. Each image is a separate image file i.e., each
image file contains the front and back of just
one check.
c. Image file ‐ for every TIFF formatted image the
file name will be yyyymmddxxxxxxxxxxcc.tiff
(yyyymmdd = date, x = sequence #, cc = cycle
code)
d. The zip file contains multiple image files and
one index file. The index file contains a header
and one record for each item we were asked to
retrieve.

Page 27 of 32
10‐6‐09

NYS Department of Taxation and Finance
Request for Proposal (RFP) #09‐01
PIT Refund Controlled Disbursement and Direct Deposit Services
Question and Answer Document

#

RFP Section

78

Section VII.
Item F

79

Section X.
Financial
Requirements

RFP
Page #
Page
49

Page
60

Question
Annual Cycle Testing ‐ The Contractor will be required
to perform a PIT Refund annual cycle test prior to
actual annual payment processing, including testing
of the PIT Refund draft paid file. We do not usually
retest clients if there has been no change. Is it the
norm for annual changes to have an impact on the
procedures, file lay out, etc., related to this
contract? If so, what types of changes create the
impact? Can you give an example please? If there
has been no change that impacts this contract, do
you still require a retest as that would not be the
norm for the products and services contemplated in
this RFP?
This provision describing Payment by Direct
Fee states that the NYS DTF may request
direct reimbursement from the Contractor. Does this
mean that the NYS DTF requires us to make a direct,
hard dollar payment on a monthly basis for the
amount by which the value of Earnings Credits
exceeds the service fees for that month?

Answer
Changes for annual cycle do not normally impact
this contract, however, the Department does
require a complete end to end test including the
refund process, paid file, images etc whether
changes have occurred or not.

The State does not require a direct, hard dollar
payment but does expect to use Earnings Credits
as payments for State services provided. The State
does require and expects all excess Earnings
Credits to accumulate for the life of the contract.
The State’s intention is to not forfeit any month’s
excess earnings.

We appreciate NYS DTF's desire to require bundled
pricing so as to limit the complexity of vendor
invoices. However, in reviewing Financial Table 1 and
2, we observed that certain, key high volume services
required in RFP #09‐01 have been excluded. Will the
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State entertain amending Financial Table 1 and
Table 2 to include those service categories which
drive significant volumes, such as Information
Reporting, Image Archive and Account
Reconciliation? In this manner, vendor pricing more
closely mirrors the large transactional services that
are required.

No.
80

Section X. Item
1.1.

Page
62

Any desired CPI‐U change requests must be made
within thirty calendar days prior to the end of the
contract year.

The Department’s requirement is stated in the
RFP, Section X.1.1.

Having such a specific and limiting time frame to
communicate a CPI‐U change can be challenging. We
respectfully request that the language be modified
to allow for a change to occur any time during years
four, five and six. Once the calculation has been
performed and communicated for a given year, it
would apply to the full year retroactively to the
contract anniversary date. That is how other state
contracts work, better ensuring the Contractor is
paid a fair inflationary adjustment vs. being
prohibited from collecting same for a timing
technicality.
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82

83

RFP Section
Section XI. Item
3. Dispute
Resolution

RFP
Page #
Page
75

Question
The bank would like to clarify that these types of
provisions are not in compliance with the bank’s
documentation that defines and discloses dispute
resolution and arbitration processes. We suggest that
disputes are handled in accordance with bank
documentation, which outline the basis for dispute
resolution. However, the bank is willing to negotiate
terms upon award. Is this acceptable to NYS DTF?

Section XI. Item
10.
Investigation
Support

Pages
76 ‐
77,

Per our regulators, we will need to have prior notice
for records examinations and such examinations will
only be related to the records pertaining to the NYS
DTF and its transactions. Further, our associates’
privacy must be maintained in accordance with the
bank’s privacy policy. The bank can potentially agree
to background checks for employees, but limited only
to the client team identified in this proposal
response. Is this acceptable to NYS DTF?

Appendix D.
Funds Transfer
Agreement

Page
131

It is customary that the funds transfer agreement
format be that of the contracting bank’s versus one
provided by the client which may have originated
from negotiations with another bank’s
form. If awarded this business, we would expect that
our Funds Transfer Agreement would govern our
funds transfer relationship but understand that NYS
DTF may wish to negotiate certain terms and

Answer

Dispute resolution is a negotiable term; however,
under no circumstances will the Department agree
to binding arbitration. Any modifications to the
language in Section XI must be submitted with
your bid proposal.

Investigative support is a negotiable term. Any
modifications to the language in Section XI must be
submitted with your bid proposal.

See Section IX, 4.1 and Section IX, 2.2. The
Contractor must agree with a NYS OSC Funds
Transfer Agreement. The bidder may provide any
standard banking and/or service agreement(s) with
the proposal response. Submission of such
agreement(s) is for informational purposes. The
bidder must be willing to negotiate the terms of
such agreement(s) prior to their inclusion in any
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subsequent contract for the services in this RFP.
conditions contained in the relevant agreement.
Therefore, would the NYS DTF accept the
Contractor's funds transfer agreement as the
foundation of its funds transfer relationship with the
Contractor? (Should you wish to review our funds
transfer agreement at any point in time, we would
be pleased to submit this form for your review
under separate cover.)
84

General

NYS DTF refers to drafts and checks throughout the
RFP. To meet the requirements of this RFP, can you
please describe the difference between a check vs. a
draft.?

All references in this RFP should be to “drafts”.
See clarification.

85

General

For documents requiring a bidder signature, will
electronic signatures suffice?

No.

86

General

Would the NYS DTF please provide the total monthly
average ledger balance maintained in the
referenced accounts for each month, beginning with
January 2008?

Month
January

2008
$8,144

2009
$6,656

February

$10,911

$5,511

March

$5,746,727

$5,775

April
May
June

$6,140
$15,886
$3,951

$5,977
$12,541
$5,364
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July

87

General

As it is necessary to establish limits for the total
dollar amount of your ACH debits and credits, would
NYS DTF please provide the maximum dollar value
of both ACH credits and debits that can be
outstanding in the ACH network for any given day?

$3,136

$4,487

August
$4,122
NA
September
$3,345
NA
October
$11,472
NA
November
$4,638
NA
December
$2,416
NA
The maximum dollar value is approximately $350
million. During peak
processing times, the value may be up to $100
million, however, generally
the value is under $10 million.
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Jan
ACH Return Item NOC 2009
ACH Return Item NOC 2008
ACH Return Item NOC 2007
ACH Return Item NOC 2006

8
236
5
0

Feb
8,862
12
5,935
5,382

Mar

Apr

14,295
9,412
5,060
14,364

30,366
33,203
16,362
8,879

May
8,392
7,015
6,685
6,598

June
568
471
969
689

July
721
654
513
446

Aug
461
270
390
322

Sept
336
299
291

Oct
494
388
262
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Nov
386
499
386

Dec

Total
63,673
0 52,489
0 37,105
0 37,619
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STANDARDS

LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

3. A. Timeliness, Completeness and Accuracy – 100%

3. A.1 Performance Monitoring

Liquidated damages of $1,000 per day for each failure to
meet this standard.

The Contractor must cooperate fully with the
Department and the Office of State Comptroller, and/or
their designees for all performance monitoring audits
and reviews. See Section VII - Program Development
and Support Requirements.

4.0 Processing

4. A. Timeliness of Processing - 100% Timeliness

4. A.1 Report Unmatched Drafts
The Contractor must report all unmatched drafts to the
Department by 10:00 a.m. on the day after presentment
to determine the disposition of such drafts.

4. A.2 Cancel Payment Orders

Liquidated damages of $100 per unmatched draft not
reported timely.

Liquidated damages of $100 per draft for cancel payment
instruction not completed timely.

The Contractor must post cancel payment orders by the
agreed upon cut-off time. See Section Vl – Functional
Requirements.

4. A.3 Report Daily Funding
The Contractor must notify OSC of the daily
presentment total no later than 10:00 a.m., in
accordance with requirements in Section VI –
Functional Requirements.

In the event the Contractor has not notified OSC in
accordance with the requirement, the Contractor must
provide funds to ensure all drafts are paid and are not
returned for insufficient funds for failure of the Contractor
to make the notification by 10:00 a.m.
Liquidated damages of $100 per each paid draft that fails
to meet the standard

4. A.4 Paid Draft Retention
The Contractor must maintain paper paid drafts or
paper IRD’s when available for at least one year from

Liquidated damages of $100 per each paid draft that fails

PIT Controlled Disbursement
Section II – Performance Standards, Liquidated Damages and Reimbursements
Amended page 12 of 158
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STANDARDS

LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

the paid date and must make copies available to the
Department, upon request, within one business day.

to meet the standard.
And /Or
Reimbursement to the Department and/or taxpayer for any
expenses, loss of revenue, etc. for failure to meet the
standard.

NYS Department of Taxation and Finance
Request for Proposal (RFP) #09-01
PIT Refund Controlled Disbursement and Direct Deposit Services
STANDARDS

LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

4. B.3 Report Daily Funding
The Contractor must accurately report the daily funding
requirements to OSC. See Section VI - Functional
Requirements.

Reimbursement to the Department for lost interest for over
funding the account
And
The Contractor must provide funds to ensure all drafts are
paid and are not returned for insufficient funds due to
underfunding the account as the result of an inaccurate
funding report.

4. B.4 Paid Draft Retention
The Contractor must accurately provide copies of
archived paper paid drafts or paper IRD’s when
available, in accordance to RFP requirements. See
Section VI- Functional Requirements.

Liquidated damages of $100 per each paid draft that fails
to meet the standard
And
Reimbursement to the Department for the value of the
draft if failure to meet the standard results in a direct cost
to the Department.

4. B.5 Images of Paid Drafts
The Contractor must provide accurate images of the
paid drafts to the Department, in accordance with the
agreed upon format. See Section Vl - Functional
Requirements.
The Contractor must image the front and back of all
paid remittances and ensure that each image meets
generally accepted industry standards for quality, and
maintains or improves the readability of the original
remittance document.

Liquidated damages of $100 per each paid draft that fails
to meet the standard
And
Reimbursement to the Department for the value of the
draft if failure to meet the standard results in a direct cost
to the Department.

100% of the images must be retrievable by paid date
and draft number.

4. B.6 Forgery Drafts
The Contractor must accurately process all forgery
affidavits received from the Department within three
business days after notification. See Section VI Functional Requirements.

Liquidated damages of $100 per each forgery affidavit that
fails to meet the standard.

PIT Controlled Disbursement
Section II – Performance Standards, Liquidated Damages and Reimbursements
Amended page 15,
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SECTION III – ADMINISTRATIVE CONDITIONS AND PROPOSAL RESPONSE REQUIREMENTS

I.

Procurement Events
A.

Notification of Intent to Bid
Bidders intending to submit a proposal to this RFP should provide a “Notification of Intent to Bid”
(Appendix B-1) by the date referenced in the Preface. The “Notification of Intent to Bid” must be
filed by the Prime Contractor only. Refer to the Preface section of this RFP for the filing date.

B.

Submission of Questions
Bidders will have an opportunity to submit questions to the Department regarding this RFP, as
indicated in the Preface of this RFP. The Department will subsequently make available, at the
Department’s web site (refer to the Preface section of the RFP), written answers to all substantive
questions, and will make an effort to answer all questions by the dates noted in the Preface. If the
Department is not able to do so by those dates, additional notification will be provided.

C.

Submission of Proposals
The dates for Submission of Proposals are listed in the Preface section of this RFP. No late bids
will be accepted. Delays in the United States Postal Service deliveries or any other means of
transmittal, including couriers or agents of the State, shall not excuse late bid submissions.

II.

Proposal Requirements
A.

Proposal Packaging
The proposal and other related materials must be enclosed in sealed containers and delivered to
the address referenced in the Preface section of this RFP. The following must be visibly inscribed
on the outside of each package:
Proposal to Provide Services for the
“PIT Refund Controlled Disbursement and Direct Deposit Program”
Contractor Name and Address
Date of Submission
Mail deliveries requiring a signature of receipt should be addressed to the Department’s campus
address, but the delivery service should be instructed to deliver the bid documents to the address
referenced in the Preface of this RFP. The Department will provide bidders with confirmation of
receipt of bids.
Bidders must submit:
1.
2.
3.

Ten copies of the Bid Documents detailed below, at C.1.through C.6 and found in Appendix B.
Ten bound copies of the Technical Proposal, including page numbers on all pages, and five
copies of the technical Proposal in .pdf format on CDs.
Ten bound copies of the Financial Proposal, including page numbers on all pages, and five
copies of the Financial Proposal in .pdf format on CDs.
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4.

5.

Ten bound copies of the responses to Section II – Performance Standards, Liquidated
Damages and Reimbursements and Section XI – Invariable Contract Conditions and
Negotiable Topics and five copies of the responses in .pdf format on CDs.
To facilitate requests for information under the Freedom of Information Law (FOIL), contractors
are required to provide two (2) copies, on CDs, of its complete proposal in a non-.pdf format
(e.g., MS Word, MS Excel, etc.).

Bidders are responsible for ensuring that the .pdf version on CDs mirrors the paper version.
B.

Requirement Responses
The requirements in Sections IV, VI, VII, VIII, IX, X, and XI are mandatory and responses to each
must be included within the Technical and Financial proposals. The responses to these
requirements will be considered in the evaluation and award process and will be implemented by
the Department. Additionally, bidders may identify alternative language or terms, as permitted by
RFP language to Section II – Performance Standards, Liquidated Damages and Reimbursements
and Section XI – Invariable Contract Conditions and Negotiable Topics.

C.B.

Bid Documents
The following forms and documents, Appendix B-2 through B-6, must be submitted with the
proposals (see I. C, above):
1.

Attestation Form
Each bidder must acknowledge and attest that it has read and agrees to the general contract
requirements as outlined in Sections VI through X of the RFP (see Appendix B-2 of this RFP).

2.

Non-Collusive Bidding Practices Certification
Each bidder is required to submit a Non-Collusive Bidding Certification (see Appendix B-3 of
this RFP) as part of the bid submission.

3.

McBride Fair Employment Principles
Each bidder is required to complete the MacBride Fair Employment Principles Form (see
Appendix B-4 of this RFP), as part of the bid submission.

4.

Contractor Certification and Certificates of Authority (Sales and Use Tax Documentation)
Section 5-a of the Tax Law, as amended, effective April 26, 2006, requires certain contractors
awarded state contracts for commodities, services and technology valued at more than
$100,000 to certify to the Department that that they are registered to collect New York State
and local sales and compensating use taxes. The law applies to contracts where the total
amount of such contractors’ sales delivered into New York State are in excess of $300,000 for
the four quarterly periods immediately preceding the quarterly period in which the certification
is made.
The law imposes upon certain contractors the obligation to certify whether or not the
contractor, its affiliates, and its subcontractors are required to register to collect state sales and
compensating use tax and contractors must certify to the Department that each affiliate and
subcontractor exceeding such sales threshold is registered with the Department to collect New
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York State and local sales and compensating use taxes. The law prohibits the State
Comptroller, or other approving agency, from approving a contract awarded to a contractor
meeting the registration requirements but who is not so registered in accordance with the law.
See Appendix B-5 for contractor certification forms and instructions for completing the forms.
Unless the information upon which the ST-220-TD is based on changes, this form only needs
to be filed once with DTF. If the information changes for the contractor, its affiliate(s), or its
subcontractor(s), a new sST-220-TD must be filed with the Department.
Form ST-220-CA must be filed with the Department (see Appendix B-5 of this RFP) and
submitted certifying that the contractor filed the ST-220-TD with the Department. Bidders may
call the Department at 1-800-698-2931 (outside NY State call 518-485-6800) for any questions
relation to Section 5-a of the Tax Law and relating to a company’s registration status with the
Department. For additional information and frequently asked questions, please refer to the
Department’s web site: http://www.nystax.gov.
5.

Vendor Responsibility Questionnaire
Article XI Section 163(4) (d) of the State Finance Law states that “service contracts shall be
awarded on the basis of best value to a responsive and responsible offerer.” Each bidder must
complete and submit a Vendor Responsibility Questionnaire (see
http://www.osc.state.ny.us/vendrep/vendor_index.htm, either online or on paper). The Bidder
Responsibility Questionnaire will be analyzed to ensure that the bidder is responsible.
Bidders, who are not deemed to be responsible, based on this analysis, may be rejected.

6.

Procurement Lobbying Act – Offerer Affirmation of Understanding and Compliance with
Procurement Lobbying Guidelines
New York State Finance Law 139-j(6)(b) requires the Department of Taxation and Finance
seek written affirmation from all Offerers as to the Offerer’s understanding of and agreement to
comply with the DTF procedures relating to permissible contacts during a government
procurement. Information related to the Procurement Lobbying Law and the Department’s
guidelines are posted on the Department’s procurement website at http://www.nystax.gov/
procurement and are referenced below.
Offerers are required to sign and submit the “Offerer Affirmation of Understanding of, and
Compliance with, Procurement Lobbying Guidelines” (see Appendix B-6).
Offerer Disclosure of Prior Non-Responsibility Determinations New York State
Finance Law §139-k(2) obligates a Governmental Entity to obtain specific information
regarding prior non-responsibility determinations with respect to State Finance Law
§139-j. This information must be collected in addition to the information that is
separately obtained pursuant to State Finance Law §163(9). In accordance with
State Finance Law §139-k, an Offerer must be asked to disclose whether there has
been a finding of non-responsibility made within the previous four (4) years by any
Governmental Entity due to: (1) a violation of State Finance Law §139-j or (2) the
intentional provision of false or incomplete information to a Governmental Entity. The
terms “Offerer” and “Governmental Entity” are defined in State Finance Law § 139k(1). State Finance Law §139-j sets forth detailed requirements about the restrictions
on Contacts during the procurement process. A violation of State Finance Law §139-j
includes, but is not limited to, an impermissible Contact during the restricted period
(for example, contacting a person or entity other than the designated contact person,
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when such contact does not fall within one of the exemptions).As part of its
responsibility determination, State Finance Law §139-k(3) mandates consideration of
whether an Offerer fails to timely disclose accurate or complete information regarding
the above non-responsibility determination. In accordance with law, no Procurement
Contract shall be awarded to any Offerer that fails to timely disclose accurate or
complete information under this Section, unless a finding is made that the award of
the Procurement Contract to the Offerer is necessary to protect public property or
public health safety, and that the Offerer is the only source capable of supplying the
required Article of Procurement within the necessary timeframe. See State Finance
Law §§139-j (10) (b) and 139-k (3).
A Governmental Entity must include a disclosure request regarding prior nonresponsibility determinations in accordance with State Finance Law §139-k in its
solicitation of proposals or bid documents or specifications or Contract documents, as
applicable, for Procurement Contracts. The attached form is to be completed and
submitted by the individual or entity seeking to enter into a Procurement Contract. It
shall be submitted to the Governmental Entity conducting the Governmental
Procurement.
a.

Offerer’s Certification of Compliance with State Finance Law 139-k(5)

New York State Finance Law 139-k(5) requires that every Procurement Contract
award subject to the provisions of State Finance Law 139-k or 139-j shall contain a
certification by the Offerer that all information provided to the procuring Government
Entity with respect to State Finance Law 139-k is complete, true and accurate.
The Department reserves the right to terminate any Contract awarded as a result of this RFP
in the event it is found that the certification filed by the Offerer/Bidder in accordance with New
York State Finance Law 139-k was intentionally false or intentionally incomplete
7.

Public Officers Law
All Bidders/Contractors and their employees must comply with Public Officers Law §73 and §74,
Chapter 1 of the Laws of 2005, the Procurement Lobbying Reform Act of 2005, and other state
statues, rules, regulations, and executive orders establishing the ethical standards for the conduct
of business with New York State. In signing the Bid, the Bidder certifies full compliance with those
provisions for any present or future dealings, transactions, sales, Contracts, services, offers,
relationships etc., involving New York State and/or its employees. Failure to comply with those
provisions may result in disqualification from the bidding process, termination of Contracts, and/or
other civil or criminal proceedings as required by law.
The Contractor shall complete and sign Appendix B-7, Public Officer’s Law, Section 73.4 which
addresses business or professional activities by state officers and employees and party officers.
This form shall be made part of the resultant contract.

D.C.

Technical Proposal
The Technical Proposal must include the following sections:
1.

Section 1 – Executive Summary
This section should be directed to the Department’s upper level management and should
contain a summary of management considerations. Bidders should utilize this Section to
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demonstrate how their proposal, services, and/or products meet the Department’s
procurement objectives as outlined in Section 1 – Introduction of this RFP. The Executive
Summary must address, at a minimum:
a. The executive commitment of the bidder, including the responsible executives and a
description of their responsibilities in the organization and in this particular procurement.
b. Plans for the acquisition, merger or other restructuring of the organization or that of any
sub-contractor.
c. The bidder’s strategic direction, including current technology policies, ongoing
commitment to research and development, and plans for future services and product lines
which may affect the Program(s) and services required herein.
d. Conceptual overview of the solution that is being proposed for the program.
e. A brief corporate history.
2.

Section 2 – Alternative language to Section II – Performance Standards, Liquidated Damages
and Reimbursements and to Section XI – Contract Conditions, if applicable

3.2. Section 23 – Responses to Requirements – Sections III – IV, VI, VII, VIII, and IX
This section must contain responses to the individual requirements contained in Sections III –
IV, VI, VII, VIII, and IX.
E.D. Financial Proposal
The bidder must submit a Financial Proposal, which must include a narrative response, as dictated
by the response column of the financial proposal requirements in Section X – Financial
Requirements, as well as tabular responses as dictated by the Financial Tables included in that
same section.
The Financial Proposal must identify all one-time development fees and all operations fees to
ensure that the Department can accurately determine the full life cycle cost of this procurement.
The data and volumes provided in Exhibit A – Volumes should be used to develop the Financial
Proposal. However, it should be noted the volumes describe the Program as it exists today. The
Department reserves the right to modify the program in the future, in ways that may benefit the
Department.

E.

Bidder’s affirmations and/or alternate language proposed for Section II – Performance Standards,
Liquidated Damages and Reimbursements and Section XI – Contract Conditions.

Bidders may choose to propose alternate language to the Performance Standards, Liquidated
Damages and Reimbursements, as set forth in Section II of this RFP and/or to the negotiable
contract conditions, in Section XI, C. of this RFP. Note that Section II of this RPF represents the
Department’s preferred standards and liquidated damages. The Department will not accept any
alternative language to the general control standards or deposit standards, though will consider
alternate language for completeness and accuracy standards for refund processing. Note also that
while the Department will consider a bidder’s alternative language to any of the negotiable clauses,
the Department does not commit to accepting the proposed changes.

F.

Clarifications and Bidder Presentations
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The Department reserves the right to require a bidder to provide clarification and validation of its
proposal, to the satisfaction of the Department, through any means the Department deems
necessary. Failure of a bidder to cooperate with the Department’s effort to clarify a proposal may
result in the proposal being labeled as non-responsive and be given no further consideration. The
Department reserves the right to use information submitted by the bidder in response to the
Department’s request for clarifying information in the course of evaluation and selection under this
RFP. Additionally, bidders may be required to participate in individual presentations or to provide
written clarification. Such clarifications will be considered in the evaluation process.
G. Proposal Effective Date
All bidders’ proposals will be considered valid for twenty four (24) months from the date of the
proposal due date.
H. Prime Bidder
The bidder shall act as the prime contractor under the contract, and shall be held solely responsible
for contract performance by the bidder, its partners, officers, employees, subcontractors (including
vendors) and agents. The bidder shall be responsible for payment of all subcontractors and
suppliers, including all third-party service providers contracted by or through the bidder in
performance of the contract(s) awarded as a result of this RFP. Where services are supplied by or
through the bidder under the contract, it is mandatory for the bidder to assume full integration
responsibility for delivery, installation, maintenance, performance and support services for all
functions. The bidder shall also be responsible for payment of any license fees, rents or other
monies due third parties for services or materials provided under the contract.
I.

Prime Contractor
If a bidder’s proposal includes another provider’s services (subcontractor), the bidder is required to
assume responsibility for those services as prime contractor. The Department considers only the
prime contractor in regard to contractual matters. If services are not provided as required under the
contract, the Department’s recourse will be against the prime contractor.

J.

Subcontracting
DTF shall have the right to approve each and every such subcontractor prior to giving written
approval to the Contractor to enter into such subcontract. DTF reserves the right to review and
approve other subcontract(s) directly related to the proposed services and/or products for the
performance of contractual obligations. All such contract(s) shall contain provisions specifying that:
1.) The work performed by the subcontractor must be in accordance with the terms of the
contract between DTF and the prime contractor.
2.) Nothing contained in such agreement shall impair the rights of DTF.
3.) Nothing contained under the contract between DTF and the prime contractor shall create
any contractual relationship between any subcontractor and DTF.
4.) DTF reserves the right to request that a member or members of the subcontractor’s staff
be removed for work related cause from any work activity performed as a result of the
subcontract, provided that such cause is not one which is prohibited by law as a basis for
terminating an employee.
5.) The prime contractor is solely responsible for subcontractor performance.
6.) DTF has final approval of subcontractors.
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7.) In the event of contract termination, DTF reserves the right to have any subcontracts
assigned to it on the same terms and conditions as applied to the prime contractor (to the
extent consistent with New York State Law).
K.

Proposal Security/Freedom of Information Law
During the evaluation process, each Bidder’s proposal will be held in strict confidence by
Department staff and will not be disclosed except to the Office of the Attorney General and the
Office of the State Comptroller as may be necessary to obtain the approvals of those agencies for
the final contract.
Public inspection of the bids is regulated by the Freedom of Information law (Article 6 of the New
York State Public Officers Law). The bids are presumptively available for public inspection. The
Freedom of Information Law provides for exemption from disclosure for trade secrets or information
the disclosure of which would cause injury to the competitive position of commercial enterprises.
The Freedom of Information Law provides that agencies may deny access to records or portions
thereof that …..”are trade secrets or submitted to an agency by a commercial enterprise or derived
from information obtained from a commercial enterprise and which, if disclosed, would cause
substantial injury to the competitive position of the subject enterprise…” (Public Officers Law
§87.2(d)). This exception would be effective both during and after the evaluation process.
Where a Freedom of Information request is made for trade secret or other information which, if
disclosed, may cause substantial injury to the competitive position of the Bidder, the Bidder must
explain with particularity why the designated portion of the bid meets the statutory criteria for
exemption from disclosure.
The provisions of the Freedom of Information Law will also govern the confidentiality of any and all
products or services supplied by the successful Contractor.
The ethical standards of the Public of the Public Officers’ Code of Ethics (Section 74 of the Public
Officers Law) provide that no officer or employee of a State agency shall disclose confidential
information that he acquires during the course of his official duties except as otherwise required by
law.
These standards control the confidentiality of a Bidder’s proposal unless the Department grants a
petition for records access in accordance with the Freedom of Information Law.

L.

Proposal Ownership
All proposals and accompanying documentation become the property of the State of New York and
will not be returned.

M. Contractor Selection and Notification of Intent to award
Selection of the successful bidder(s) will be based on best value. The successful bidder(s) will be
advised of their selection by the Department through the issuance of a “Notification of Intent to
Award” letter.
N. Debriefing
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Unsuccessful bidders will be notified in writing and may request the opportunity for a debriefing
session. Such sessions will be limited to discussions of evaluation results with respect to the
bidder’s proposal as they apply to the bidder receiving the debriefing.
O. Contract Negotiations and Approval
During contract negotiations, the Department must have direct access to the Contractor’s
personnel who have full authority to make commitments on behalf of the Contractor and subcontractors. The negotiated contract must conform to the laws of New York State, and will be
subject to approval by the Office of the Attorney General and the Office of the State Comptroller.
The contract will not be considered finally executed until formal approval has been granted by the
Office of the Attorney General and the Office of the State Comptroller. The RFP, the Contractor’s
proposal, and all associated modifications and clarifications will be made part of the negotiated
contract.
The Contractor(s) must sign a contract within 60 days of award, and if the Contractor fails to
do so, the Department reserves the right to begin negotiations with the second rated bidder.
P.

Amendments
Amendments to the contract awarded as a result of this RFP will not be effective until approved by
the Office of the Attorney General and the Office of the State Comptroller, where necessary.

Q. Bid Protest Policy
The Department’s procedures for handling protests of bid awards are set forth in Appendix C of this
RFP.

R.

Bid Solicitation
This RFP is a solicitation to bid, not an offer of a contract.

S.

Issuing Office
This RFP is issued by the New York State Department of Taxation and Finance which is
responsible for all requirements stated herein and for evaluation of all proposals submitted.

T.

Liability
The State of New York is not liable for any costs incurred by a bidder in the preparation and
production of any proposal, or for any work performed prior to the final execution of a contract.

U. Reserved Rights
The Department reserves the right to:
1.) Disqualify a bidder from receiving an award if such bidder has previously failed to perform
satisfactorily in connection with public bidding or contract(s) or is deemed otherwise not
responsible.
2.) Reject any or all proposals received in response to this RFP and to reissue modified
version of this RFP.
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3.) Withdraw the RFP (in whole or in part).
4.) Use the proposal, information obtained through site visits, management interviews and the
Department’s investigation of a bidder’s qualifications, experience, ability or financial
standing, and any material or information submitted by the bidder in response to the
Department’s request for clarifying information in the course of evaluation and selection
under this RFP.
5.) Change any of the scheduled dates stated herein.
6.) Develop and implement program enhancements in-house or by entering into agreements
with other third party providers. If the Department does not select the contractor(s) to
develop and/or implement a program enhancement, the contractor(s) must be willing to
work in good faith with the Department and/or any other involved party of parties to
develop the requested program enhancements. Should the Department determine that
enhancement services being provided by a third party does not meet the Department’s
expectations, the Department reserves the right to begin negotiations with the
Contractor(s) to provide such services.
7.) Eliminate any mandatory specification that cannot be complied with by any of the
prospective bidders.
8.) Determine a tie-breaking mechanism for award of the contract based upon an in-house
established methodology which serves the best interest of the State.
9.) Negotiate with the successful bidder within the scope of the RFP in the best interests of
the State; and conduct contract negotiations with the next eligible responsible bidder
should the Department be unsuccessful in negotiating an agreement with the selected
bidder within a time frame acceptable to the Department. Such time frame is to be
determined solely by the Department based on the best interests of the State.
W. News Releases
Public announcements or news releases pertaining to the selection of the Contractor or award of a
contract must not be made without prior written approval from the Department. Such approval shall
not be granted until a finally executed and approved contract is in place.
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FUNCTIONAL REQUIREMENT

REQUIRED RESPONSE

NYS OSC.
A 1.9

A. 1.9

The Contractor must provide customer service in
order to effectively and timely address issues
related to all bank accounts. This service must
include research of issues related to the payment of
drafts.

Describe the proposed customer services.

A. 2.0 PROCESSING FILES

A. 2.1 Draft Issuance Files

A. 2.1

The Contractor must accept separate issuance files
- transmitted for each account (Exhibit B-1 – Draft
Issuance File Layout). The Contractor must also
accept check issuance text files for multiple
accounts.

Describe the proposed method for processing the draft
issuance files ensuring that next day presentments are not
unmatched. Include proposed issuance file receipt cut-off time
and the proposed retention period.

A. 2.2 Listing of Paid Drafts

A. 2.2

The Contractor must create and send daily listings
of paid drafts (see Exhibit B - 2 – Paid Draft File
Layout) to the Department. This file must not
include encoding errors or drafts issued out of other
accounts. The Contractor must notify the
Department of file delivery.

Provide the proposed listings of paid drafts – the timing of the
delivery of the paid file to the Department. Also describe the
method and timing of notification, as well as the content.

A 2.3 Presented Draft Notification

A.

The Contractor must provide NYS OSC, with the
total dollar amounts of matched presented drafts no
later than 10:00 a.m. each business day.

Describe the proposed process for determining the value of
paid drafts (e.g. in-house processing of drafts, use of Federal
Reserve services, etc.); for completing the match of presented
drafts against the issuance file data; for ensuring that an
accurate presentment dollar total and item total is provided to
OSC; and for the time frame for notification to OSC.

The Contractor must not pay any unmatched items
without prior DTF approval. The Department will
accept estimates on an exception basis. The
Contractor should consult with OSC prior to the
10:00 a.m. EST deadline to determine the funding
estimate.

2.3

A. 3.0 DRAFT PROCESSING
A. 3.1 Positive Pay Exception Items

A.3.1

The Contractor must report to the Department any

Describe the proposed method of reporting all positive pay
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FUNCTIONAL REQUIREMENT

REQUIRED RESPONSE

B.1.1

For requirement B.1.1:

The Contractor must provide an online application with
access for the Department and NYS OSC including, but not
limited to the following functionality:
a.
b.
c.
d.

Notification of total presented drafts.
Notification of paid drafts.
Inquiry into the status of an issued draft.
Draft cancellation status.

e.

Access to images of all paid drafts by, at a
minimum, draft number. In addition, it would be
desirable to have additional access to the images
by taxpayer name, draft amount, issuance date,
paid date, and date ranges.

a.

Describe the proposed online capabilities, including, but not
limited to:
1)
2)
3)

b.

Access hours.
Access options, including any limitations (i.e., maximum
number of characters allowed in fields, etc.)
Data retention and retrieval timeframe

Provide proposed sample screens and reports.

Describe any necessary equipment and connectivity for access.

Access to this data must be available for at least seven
years, of which thirty-six months (from the paid date) worth
must be accessible via the online application.
C. 1.0 MAINTENANCE, ACCESS AND DESTRUCTION
OF ORIGINAL DRAFTS
C. 1.1

C. 1.1

The Contractor must maintain original paper drafts or Paper
IRD’s when available for at least one year from the paid date.

Provide a detailed description of the proposed paper draft storage
location and associated security controls.

C. 1.2

C. 1.2

The Contractor must provide requested original paper drafts
or paper IRD’s when available within one business day (of
the agreed upon request cut-off time).

Describe the proposed process for providing paper original paid drafts to
the Department, including the proposed request cut-off time.

C. 1.3

C. 1.3

The Contractor must provide for the confidential destruction
of original paper drafts or paper IRD’s after the required one
year retention period.

Describe the proposed method of destruction.

D. DIRECT DEPOSIT SERVICES AND PROCESSING

The Contractor must affirm understanding of and agreement with
requirements D.1.0 – D.6.1. In addition, provide the individual
requirement detail listed below.

D. 1.0 TRANSMISSION RECEIPT
D. 1.1 The Contractor must be able to receive from the
Department a data transmission(s) formatted to NACHA
specifications (see Exhibit B-3 – Direct Deposit Initiation File
Layout) to initiate ACH Credit transactions. Prior to
implementation, the Department and the Contractor must
agree to a mutually acceptable data transmission protocol.

D. 1.1
Provide the proposed receipt timeframe of the ACH Credit transactions.
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FUNCTIONAL REQUIREMENT

REQUIRED RESPONSE

D.1.2

D.1.2

The confirmation and authorization to release direct
deposit transactions shall be accomplished with a
secure, automated, and password protected system.
The State requires unique passwords for OSC and
the NYS Division of Treasury, who will each assign
a security administrator(s). The security
administrators will assign authorizations to transmit
or release files. No user shall be allowed to do both.

Describe current ACH authorization and release process.

If an entry is returned to the contracting bank, the
contracting bank must notify the Department
electronically within one business day of the day of
receipt.
D. 2.0 DIRECT DEPOSIT INITIATION,
AKNOWLEDGEMENT AND REJECTION FILES
D. 2.1

D. 2.1

The Contractor must transmit PIT Refund direct
deposits so that funds are available for withdrawal
by the taxpayer(s) at the opening of business on the
specified dates contained on the data provided by
the Department.

Provide the proposed back-up time frames to transmit to the
ACH network if, for any reason, the initial transmission is not
initiated or the transmission fails. Also provide the control
structure for the PIT Controlled Disbursement account (i.e., how
transfers into/out of the account will be identified and
segregated from other ACH Credit transactions).

D 2.2
The contractor must provide an acknowledgement
file, using the standard NACHA file format.

Describe the proposed timeframe and format for the provision
of the Acknowledgement file to the Department.

D. 2.23

D. 2.23

The Contractor must provide ACH Credit rejection
reports and information (see Exhibit B-4 – Direct
Deposit Reject File Layout); including reason codes
(based on the most recent publication of the NACHA
rules). The return notification must identify the tax
payer by name, identification number, intended
recipient, trace number, and other identification
information which is mutually agreed upon.

Describe the proposed timeframe and format for provision of
the ACH Credit rejection reports and information to the
Department.

PIT Controlled Disbursement
Section VI – Functional Requirements
Amended Page 40 of 158
10-6-9

NYS Department of Taxation and Finance
Request for Proposal (RFP) #09-01
PIT Refund Controlled Disbursement and Direct Deposit Services

FUNCTIONAL REQUIREMENT

REQUIRED RESPONSE

D. 3.0 ACH CREDIT REJECTIONS
D. 3.1

D. 3.1

The Contractor must credit ACH Credit rejections to
the main PIT Controlled Disbursement account. The
dollar value of all returns must be transferred to the
Controlled Disbursement Account within 24 hours of
receipt of the returned items.

Provide the proposed timeframe for which the ACH Credit
rejections are credited to the main concentration PIT refund
account.
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Section X – Financial Requirements
FINANCIAL TABLE 1
DIRECT FEES

Years
1-3
Operations Fees (Requirement 1.0):
Fully Loaded Transaction Fee – PIT Refund paid drafts
(1.2)
Fully Loaded Transaction Fee – PIT Refund Direct Deposit
Development Costs (Requirement 2.1):
Development Costs (2.1)
System Enhancement Rates (Requirement 3.2):
System Enhancements – Programming Hourly Rate (3.1)
System Enhancement – UAT Hourly Rate (3.2)
Other Fees (Requirement 4.0):
FDIC Fees (4.1)

Program Years
Year 4
Year 5

Year 6

CPI-U

CPI-U

CPI-U

CPI-U

CPI-U

CPI-U

CPI-U
CPI-U

CPI-U
CPI-U

CPI-U
CPI-U

Note: All proposed fees must be guaranteed for the first three years of the base term.
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Section X – Financial Requirements
FINANCIAL TABLE 2
Compensating Balances
Years
1-3
Operations Fees (Requirement 1.0):
Fully Loaded Transaction Fee – PIT Refund paid drafts
(1.2)
Fully Loaded Transaction Fee – PIT Refund Direct Deposit
Development Costs (Requirement 2.1):
Development Costs (2.1)
System Enhancement Rates (Requirement 3.2):
System Enhancements – Programming Hourly Rate (3.1)
System Enhancement – UAT Hourly Rate (3.2)
Other Fees (Requirement 4.0):

Program Years
Year 4
Year 5

Year 6

CPI-U

CPI-U

CPI-U

CPI-U

CPI-U

CPI-U

CPI-U
CPI-U

CPI-U
CPI-U

CPI-U
CPI-U

FDIC Fees (4.1)

Note: All proposed fees must be guaranteed for the first three years of the base term.
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